WORKS INFORMATION GENERAL PRELIMINARIES

Contents

WI 100 Descriptions of the works

WI 200 General constraints on how the Contractor provides the works

WI 300 Contractor's design

WI 400 Completion

WI 500 Programme

WI 600 Quality assurance

WI 700 Tests and inspections

WI 800 Management of the works

WI 900 Working with the Employer and others

WI 1000 Services and other things to be provided

WI 1100 Health and safety

WI 1200 Subcontracting

WI 1300 Title

WI 1400 Accounts and records

WI 1500 Employer's work specifications and drawings

WI 100 DESCRIPTIONS OF THE WORKS

WI 110 PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The project philosophy listed below will provide the ethos by which the project team, comprising the Employer, Contractor, Project Manager, Supervisor, designers, quantity surveyor, Principle Designer and end users work together to a successful conclusion.

The philosophy for this project is that the Contractor takes responsibility for the construction of all works in accordance with the scope and standards as defined within the Works Information and is required to provide the finished works implicit in this contract.

In order to clarify the understanding of the parties to this contract, it is the intention that the Contractor's responsibility encompasses such items as the following:

- Carry out all necessary surveys and investigations to be satisfied of the physical conditions
 of the site.
- Achieve zero defects instituting a procedure in co-operation with the Project Manager and the Supervisor to achieve this aim in respect of each activity. No payment will be made until the Supervisor is satisfied that an activity is complete and free of defects.
- Involve the Employer in decisions and ensure that he is given choices in sufficient time for him to influence any event effecting cost, quality and time.
- Promote the Employer's aims and objectives of:
 - creating a project team based on mutual trust, co-operation and best practice.
 - instilling a "right first time" and "don't mess it up" attitude on all the project team.
 - commitment to incorporating good environmental practices of resource and energy efficiency, healthy buildings and materials, ecologically, socially and aesthetically sensitive without compromising functionality, quality or cost performance.

WI 105 DESCRIPTION OF THE WORKS

The scope of works is defined by the Works Information including the Scope of Work and User Requirement Specification

Subject to the conditions of contract, the Contractor will provide the works in accordance with the Works Information.

The project is to provide a new Incinerator Lighting System within Room 06/5 of Building 06.

WI 200 GENERAL CONSTRAINTS ON HOW THE CONTRACTOR PROVIDES THE WORKS

WI 205 GENERAL CONSTRAINTS

SITE VISIT:

The Contractor shall be deemed to have visited the site and acquainted himself with the restrictions and other matters, which may affect the works.

METHOD/SEQUENCE OF WORK:

The limitations described in this section are supplementary to limitations described or implicit in information given in other sections or on the drawings.

The notification procedure to obtain prior written consent from the Project Manager is to be followed.

THE SITE:

The works are situated at PHE, Porton Down, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0JG.

The Contractor is to be restricted to the working areas required to carry out the works.

SITE BOUNDARIES:

The Contractor's operations and personnel movements will be confined to the site and working areas together with the areas allocated by the Project Manager for the erection of temporary buildings and storage of materials.

ACCESS TO THE SITE:

Refer to Pre-Construction Information within the Site Information for details of access arrangements.

Access to the site for construction and delivery vehicles shall be from the A30, access shall not be permitted through the villages of Porton or Idmiston.

The Contractor is required to ensure that access and public rights of way inside and outside the site are maintained at all times for the duration of the project and kept clean and clear of mud and debris.

The site operates a one way system which will be maintained and adhered to.

Where this access route will be affected due to the works PHE will be informed and alternative signing will be arranged and agreed with the Project Manager.

ACCESS TO EXISTING ADJACENT BUILDINGS:

The Contractor's attention is drawn to the adjacent and close proximity of existing buildings, many of which include facilities of a sensitive nature and the access and working limitations of the restricted site.

There is to be no access for the Contractor's personnel including his sub-contractors' into existing buildings unless specific site works are to be carried out and subject to the prior written consent of the Project Manager.

USE OF THE SITE:

Do not use the site for any purpose other than carrying out the Works.

The Contractor's operations and personnel movements will be confined to the site and working areas together with the area allocated by the Project Manager for the erection of temporary buildings, parking and storage of materials.

The Contractor shall obtain the approval of the Project Manager for the erection of all temporary structures, temporary paths and roads, spoil heaps, material dumps, plant, machinery and the like which are necessary for the execution of the works.

Do not display or permit advertisements to be displayed on site without the consent of the Project Manager.

Ensure that no material or equipment is brought onto site except that required for the works.

The Contractor shall exercise proper control over workpeople whether in his own employ or that of his Subcontractors and prevent their trespassing beyond the immediate vicinity of the work in hand and he shall immediately dismiss or replace any workpeople trespassing.

The final position of the Contractor's compound, accommodation, storage areas, craneage and other such temporary arrangements and/or structures on site will be the subject of a prior submission to and approval of the Project Manager prior to commencing the works on site.

The Contractor will be responsible for clearance of any areas required for the Contractor's compound, accommodation, storage areas, craneage and other such temporary arrangements and/or structures prior to commencement of the works.

These areas are to be reinstated by the Contractor on completion to the satisfaction of the Project Manager.

THE EXISTING BUILDING(S):

Refer to Pre Construction Information Pack within the Works Information.

The existing buildings, plant, equipment and paved areas adjacent to this site will be in constant use throughout the contract period and access to all areas surrounding the Contractor's site must be maintained free from all obstructions at all times for the use of the Employer's staff and other authorised personnel, emergency services and the Contractor is to liaise with all others working within the site on the mutual use of access routes and any necessary diversions.

The Contractor shall ensure the compound; storage and parking areas and all other existing areas are reinstated at his expense to the same condition as at the time of possession.

OCCUPIED PREMISES:

The existing and surrounding buildings will be occupied and/or used during the contract.

The Contractor must allow access to all non-work areas throughout the construction period.

Carry out the Works without undue inconvenience and nuisance and without danger to occupants and users.

The Contractor shall provide, erect, maintain, adapt and on completion remove protective barriers, walkways, screens, tarpaulins, dust sheets, etc. required for the protection of the occupants and users, general public and employees, agents or servants of the Employer and any other person upon the Employer's property.

If it transpires that compliance with this clause requires certain operations to be carried out during overtime, and such overtime is not required for any other reason, the extra cost will be paid to the Contractor, provided that such overtime is authorised by the Project Manager in advance.

SITE INVESTIGATION:

The Contractor shall be responsible for all additional site investigation works required as necessary and include all such costs within his Contract Sum.

No variation will be issued through the Contractor's lack of knowledge of the existing building, its structure, services, ground conditions etc.

SCAFFOLDING:

Ensure that standing scaffolding is erected early enough and/or dismantled late enough to suit the programmes of all subcontractors.

Ensure that no scaffolding encroaches into access routes which must be kept clear for the fire brigade, etc.

All scaffolding, hoists and hoarding are to be secure to prevent access to the site.

The use of scaffold fanning is considered appropriate on key access points as well as the use of additional scaffolding 'impact' protection may also be required.

The contractor shall ensure there is no unauthorised access to the site or building via the scaffold or any contractor temporary measures.

WORKING HOURS:

The Contractor must restrict his work on site to within the hours of 7:30am and 5.30pm Monday to Friday inclusive except Bank Holidays.

Subject to the constraints and requirements detailed elsewhere within the contract, the Contractor will be entitled to work continuously without interruption within the site during these working hours.

Apart from works required to be carried out "out of hours" as stated elsewhere, no construction work will take place outside these hours on weekends or Bank Holidays, except with the prior written consent of the Project Manager.

Subject to the above restrictions, the Contractor may work the hours required in order to meet the completion date and no claim for out of hours working or overtime working will be entertained.

WORKS OUTSIDE NORMAL WORKING HOURS:

Any works that will prevent the use of other facilities on the site will need to be strictly agreed in advance, and the contractor should allow for this within his tender.

The notification procedure to obtain prior written consent from the Project Manager is to be followed.

OVERTIME WORKING:

Whenever overtime is permitted to be worked and subject to availability of supervision by PHE, give the Project Manager not less than 5 working days' notice, specifying times, types and locations of work to be done.

Concealed work executed during overtime for which notice has not been given may be required to be opened up for inspection and reinstated at the Contractor's expense.

DELIVERIES:

The Contractor must maintain clear access for deliveries to the existing buildings in the vicinity at all times.

Movement times for heavy equipment will be agreed in advance with the Project Manager.

The Contractor is to adopt a "just in time" policy with respect to deliveries to ensure that access is not restricted by waiting lorries and the like.

The Contractor is to ensure that appropriate site personnel are present to receive all deliveries.

The Contractor is to liaise with the Project Manager and provide notification 24 hours in advance of any intended deliveries to ensure the details are registered at the security gatehouse.

The Contractor shall bear any costs incurred if deliveries are turned away from the site from failure to observe the above.

CAR PARKING:

The Contractor should note that parking and a lay down area will be provided in the White Huts area.

FLOODLIGHTS:

Any floodlighting used in the Contractor's compound or anywhere else on the Site will be as approved by the Project Manager.

RADIOS

Transistor radios and other sound reproducing devices will not be used.

FACILITIES:

The Contractor shall not enter or carry out work in the existing facilities without prior approval by the Project Manager.

EXPLOSIVES:

Do not use.

NOISE:

Comply generally with the recommendations of BS 5228: Part 1, clause 9.3 for minimising noise levels during the execution of the works.

Noise levels from the works are to be kept within acceptable limits dictated by the Local Authority.

Fit all compressors, percussion tools and vehicles with effective silencers of a type recommended by manufacturers of the compressors, tools or vehicles.

Do not use pneumatic drills and other noisy appliances without consent of the Project Manager.

Do not use or permit employees to use radios or other audio equipment in ways or at times which may cause nuisance.

STORAGE OF FUEL AND CHEMICALS:

The Contractor shall identify to the Project Manager the intention to store fuel or chemicals on site as part of the construction works. Method statements/risk assessments shall be provided and all materials stored in an appropriate manner.

EMPLOYER SPECIFIC POLICIES:

The Contractor shall comply with the Employers "Health Safety and Security Guidance Notes for Contractors" contained within the Construction Information Pack at Section C Part 2.4.

BURNING ON SITE of materials arising from the work will not be permitted.

SMOKING ON SITE:

Smoking on site is strictly prohibited in any building or area within the security fence other than the designated smoking shelter adjacent to the site incinerator building.

INSURANCE CLAIMS:

If any event occurs which may give rise to any claim or proceeding in respect of loss or damage to the Works or injury or damage to persons or property arising out of the Works, forthwith give notice in writing to the Employer and the Project Manager.

Indemnify the Employer against any loss which may be caused by failure to give such notice.

WORKS OF EMERGENCY:

In the event of works of emergency being required the Contractor is to notify the Project Manager immediately such works are commenced otherwise no claim for additional payments will be entertained.

WI 210 CONFIDENTIALITY

INFORMATION RESTRICTIONS:

The Contractor will not publish any information or drawing concerning this Contract nor take photographs or use the works or the Site for advertising except with the written consent of the Project Manager.

This restriction shall not apply to disclosures required by Law except that in such event the parties shall co-ordinate to the extent possible with respect to the wording of such announcements

WI 215 SECURITY AND PROTECTION OF THE SITE

SECURITY:

The site is within a security fence with strict control regarding access and egress.

Security must be maintained at all times, the Contractor shall liaise with PHE's security personnel to ensure this requirement is fulfilled. See Pre-Construction Information Pack for PHE Health, Safety and Security Guidance Notes.

PHOTOGRAPHS:

Photographs can only be taken with the express permission of the Project Manager in writing.

All images are to be taken using a PHE camera and all photographs shall be vetted prior to release by the PHE Head of Security.

All images shall be treated as Private and Confidential.

No guarantee is provided that permission for taking photographs will be given, any person found to be taking photographs without permission will be instructed to leave site immediately.

This shall not form part of a compensation event.

WI 220 SECURITY AND IDENTIFICATION OF PEOPLE

SECURITY:

SECURITY CHECKING:

All Contractors and external parties working on the Project will be expected to undergo a Baseline Standards Check and sign a declaration under the Official Secrets Act.

This will reinforce that they are not at liberty to discuss the detail of any sensitive aspects.

This will not replace any confidentiality agreements that their organizations are asked to enter into with the PHE, which will continue to remain in force.

Any persons failing to provide the required data or failing the security checks will not be permitted to engage on the project.

In a small number of instances, National Security Vetting may be required. In these cases, the individual is likely to have a comprehensive understanding of the zone 4, and/or a thorough understanding of the site security system, and /or have knowledge of the greater site detail.

These individuals will be identified by the PHE Management with input from the PHE Head of Security.

The Contractor is to closely liaise with the Project Manager and the Employer at all times during the contract and completely satisfy them that all matters raised are dealt with quickly and effectively.

The Contractor shall notify the security gate 24 hours in advance, the names of all site personnel expected to be working on the site and notifying in advance any deliveries scheduled to take place.

All Contractors personnel must sign in at the gatehouse before entering site and sign out when leaving. Security identity passes must be worn at all times when on site.

The Contractor will be required to keep records of all site operatives and have a security briefing and identity card system as part of the overall site induction process.

The Employer will from time to time ask the Contractor for the site operatives' records and this information will not be withheld.

Adequately safeguard the site, the works, products, materials, plant, and any existing buildings affected by the works from damage and theft.

Take all reasonable precautions to prevent unauthorised access to the site, the works and adjoining property.

The Contractor must ensure that the site is secure at the end of each working day, and that any opening in the external envelope of the building under the control of the Contractor is adequately blocked up including the re-connection of intruder alarms disturbed.

The Contractor must also ensure that the occupied sections of the building remain secure during, and at the end of the working day.

WI 225 PROTECTION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND SERVICES

EXISTING BUILDINGS ON/ADJACENT TO THE SITE:

The existing buildings on the site are shown within the Pre-Construction Information. As well as specifically identified within the Works Information drawings and specifications.

PROTECTION TO EXISTING BUILDING:

The Contractor is to provide complete internal and external protection as necessary to the existing buildings and services, in particular, the external facades, roof areas and any external plant. If damaged, the Contractor shall be liable for and shall indemnify the Employer against any expense, liability, loss, claim or proceedings provided always that the damage is due to any negligence, omission or default of the Contractor's workpeople or those of his subcontractors.

The Contractor must protect, uphold and maintain all existing structures, live drainage, ducts, water, gas and other mains or power services and if any such items are damaged he shall be liable for and shall indemnify the Employer against any expense, liability, loss, claim or proceedings provided always that the damage is due to any negligence, omission or default of the Contractor's workpeople or those of his subcontractors.

The Contractor shall ensure there is no unauthorised access to the site or building.

The Contractor must not make connections or interfere with the operation of existing services, such as live drainage, water, gas or other mains or power services without the written permission of the Project Manager/Employer.

The Contractor is to comply in all respects with the Public Health England Permit to Work Policy.

The Contractor must give two weeks' notice before any service is interrupted except by agreement in accordance with the Permit to Work Procedure.

EXISTING MAINS/SERVICES:

The Contractor must undertake his own investigations to ascertain the service positions or positions of other unknown services.

Prior to any construction taking place the Contractor is to confirm in writing that through his own investigations of the area has been undertaken and that the service utilities have been consulted.

No claim for additional costs will be accepted due to information being inaccurate or incomplete.

The Contractor is responsible for taking all necessary precautions for protecting the services during the building operation and ensures that these are not damaged in any way.

Any such damage must be made good to the satisfaction of the Project Manager, the Employer, any Statutory Authority and adjoining owners or occupiers at the Contractors expense.

No diversion of any of the existing services, etc. other than works expressly shown in the Works Information shall be carried out without the prior written approval of the Project Manager.

All services that affect the work areas, electrical and piped that will require isolation during the works must be carried out by the site maintenance contractor (Emcor) under the direction of the clients construction supervisor and the successful contractor.

The Contractors attention is drawn to the presence of existing services crossing the proposed site access route. This includes a concrete service duct with a weight limit of 6.5 tonnes. Appropriate protection measures are to be agreed with the Project Manager.

EXISTING SERVICES:

The contractor shall ensure that all the existing services to be retained are protected.

Any necessary disruption to existing services or other areas not forming part of the works must be agreed with the Project Manager.

PROTECT AGAINST THE FOLLOWING:

NUISANCE:

Take all necessary precautions to prevent nuisance from smoke, dust, rubbish, vermin and other causes.

DUST CONTROL:

Contractor is to take all necessary steps to minimise dust transfer to all occupied areas outside the boundary of the works.

A number of the adjacent buildings include cleanroom type facilities and care must be taken to ensure the ingress of dust does not affect the clean room air quality within adjacent buildings.

ASBESTOS BASED MATERIALS:

Should any asbestos based materials be discovered, report immediately to the Project Manager any such discovery.

Avoid disturbing such materials. Agree with the Project Manager methods for safe removal or encapsulation.

FIRE PREVENTION:

Take all necessary precautions to prevent personal injury, death, and damage to the Works or other property from fire. Comply with Joint Code of Practice 'Fire Prevention on Construction Sites' published by the Building Employers Confederation and the Loss Prevention Council. Maintain fire escape routes.

Comply with the Employer's emergency procedures, fire precautions, fire alarm systems, means of escape and broadcast message system.

The Contractor must take all reasonable precautions to avoid the outbreak of fire, particularly in work involving the use of naked flames. Such work should be examined at short intervals following its completion.

The Contractor must draw the attention of all workpeople on the site to the dangers involved in the careless use of naked flames in proximity to combustible materials, disposal of matches, cigarettes, tobacco ash, etc. and of the accumulation of rubbish must be fully impressed on them.

Fire protection compartments must be maintained and fire escape routes must remain unobstructed and, where necessary illuminated. The Contractor must provide and maintain suitable fire extinguishers. A fire alarm system(s) must be maintained to the working areas by the Contractor at all times.

The attention of the Contractor is drawn to the current HMSO Publication 'Standard Fire Precautions P5 - to be taken by Contractors engaged on building and engineering works and maintenance for the Department of the Environment' and its recommendations where relevant to the works.

Fire extinguishers and hydrants must not be obstructed and access to them must be maintained at all times.

MANAGEMENT OF FIRE PRECAUTIONS:

The Contractor shall appoint a site fire safety co-ordinator who will be responsible for all the fire precautions for the complete duration of the work.

The named person will normally be present on site until the work is completed and shall liaise with the Project Manager and PHE's Health and Safety Department.

WATER:

Prevent damage from storm and surface water.

MOISTURE:

Prevent the work from becoming wet or damp where this may cause damage.

Dry out the works thoroughly. Control the drying out and humidity of the works and the application of heat to prevent:

- Blistering and failure of adhesion.
- Damage due to trapped moisture.

Excessive movement.

INFECTED TIMBER:

Where instructed to remove timber affected by fungal/insect attack from the building, do so in a way which will minimise the risk of infecting other parts of the building.

ELECTROMAGNETIC INTERFERENCE:

Take all necessary precautions to avoid excessive electromagnetic disturbance of apparatus, and seek clarity from the Employer of the sensitivity of equipment that may be affected by the Works.

LASER EQUIPMENT:

Install, use and store construction laser equipment in accordance with BS EN 60825-1 and the manufacturer's instructions.

PROTECT THE FOLLOWING:

WORK IN ALL SECTIONS:

Adequately protect all types of work and all parts of the Works, including work carried out by others, throughout the Contract.

Wherever work is of an especially vulnerable nature or is exposed to abnormal risks provide special protection to ensure that damage does not occur.

EXISTING SERVICES:

Notify all service authorities and/or adjacent owners of the proposed works not less than one week before commencing site operations.

Before starting work check and mark positions of existing mains/ services. Where positions are not shown on drawings obtain relevant details from service authorities or other owners.

Observe service authority's recommendations for work adjacent to existing services.

Adequately protect, and prevent damage to all services. Do not interfere with their operation without consent of the service authorities or other owners.

Identify below ground services with signboards, giving type and depth, and overhead services with headroom markers.

If any damage to services results from the execution of the Works, immediately notify the Project Manager and appropriate service authority.

Make arrangements for the work to be made good without delay to the satisfaction of the service authority or other owner as appropriate.

Any measures taken by the Project Manager to deal with an emergency will not affect the extent of the Contractor's liability.

Replace marker tapes or protective covers disturbed during site operations to the service authority's recommendations.

ROADS AND FOOTPATHS:

Adequately protect roads and footpaths within and adjacent to the site.

Any damage to roads and footpaths caused by site traffic or otherwise consequent upon the Works must be made good to the satisfaction of the Project Manager. The Contractor is to bear any costs arising.

It is the responsibility of the contractor to obtain any necessary permits for road or footpath closures.

BUILDING INTERIORS:

Protect building interiors exposed to weather during the course of alteration work with temporary enclosures of sufficient size to permit execution of the work and which will remain weather tight in severe weather.

EXISTING WORK:

Prevent damage to existing property undergoing alteration or extension and make good to match existing any defects so caused.

Cut away and strip out the minimum necessary and with care to reduce the amount of making good to a minimum.

ADJOINING PROPERTY:

Prevent trespass of workpeople.

Take all reasonable precautions to prevent damage to adjoining property.

Obtain permission as necessary from the owners if requiring erecting scaffolding on or otherwise using adjoining property, and paying all charges.

Remove and make good on completion or when directed.

Bear the cost of repairing any damage arising from execution of the Works.

The Contractor shall ensure that the Project Manager is kept fully informed of any matters arising with respect to adjoining properties and neighbours and shall ideally be the point of contact between them and the Employer.

EXISTING STRUCTURES:

Check proposed methods of work for effects on adjacent structures inside and outside the site boundary.

Provide and maintain during the execution of the Works all incidental shoring, strutting, needling and other supports as may be necessary to preserve the stability of existing structures on the site or adjoining, which may be endangered or affected by the works.

Support existing structure as necessary during cutting of new openings or replacement of structural parts.

Monitor adjacent structures and immediately report excessive movement to the Project Manager.

Do not remove supports until new work is strong enough to support the existing structure. Prevent overstressing of completed work when removing supports.

RETAINED TREES/ SHRUBS/ GRASSED AREAS:

Protection:

Prevent damage and preserve, except those not required. Protect trees and roots with tree preservation orders as indicated on NPA's drawings and specification.

Replacement:

Mature trees and shrubs if uprooted, destroyed, or damaged beyond reasonable chance of survival in their original shape, as a consequence of the Contractor's negligence, must be replaced with those of a similar type and age at the Contractor's expense.

TREES TO BE RETAINED:

Unless agreed otherwise by the Project Manager, do not:

- Dump soil or rubbish, excavate or disturb topsoil, park vehicles or plant, store materials or place temporary accommodation within the branch spread.
- Sever roots exceeding 25mm in diameter. If unintentionally severed give notice and seek advice.
- Change level of ground within area 3m beyond the branch spread. Branches of existing trees which are likely to interfere with the execution of the works must be carefully tied back

or with the prior written approval of the Project Manager removed by a specialist using sound arboricultural practice at the Contractor's expense.

 Any damage caused to trees must be immediately reported in writing to the Project Manager and any remedial treatment subsequently directed by the Project Manager, including replacement of the affected trees if necessary, must be carried out by a specialist, to sound arboricultural practice at the Contractor's expense.

TEMPORARY WORKS:

On completion of the Works, the Contractor must remove from the site all temporary works, plant, surplus materials etc., and make good any disturbance or damage including damage to the ground or structures, to the satisfaction of the Project Manager.

WI 230 PROTECTION OF THE WORKS

PROTECTION OF PRODUCTS:

Prevent over-stressing, distortion and any other type of physical damage.

Keep clean and free from contamination.

Prevent staining, chipping, scratching or other disfigurement, particularly of products exposed to view in the finished work.

Keep dry and in a suitably low humidity atmosphere to prevent premature setting, moisture movement and similar defects.

Where appropriate store off the ground and allow free air movement around and between stored products.

Prevent excessively high or low temperatures and rapid changes of temperature in the products.

Protect adequately from rain, damp, frost, sun and other elements as appropriate.

Ensure that products are at a suitable temperature and moisture content at time of use.

Ensure that sheds and covers are of ample size, in good weatherproof condition and well secured.

Keep different types and grades of products separately and adequately identified.

So far as possible keep products in their original wrappings, packaging or containers, until immediately before they are used.

Wherever possible retain protective wrappings after fixing and until shortly before Practical Completion.

Ensure that protective measures are fully compatible with and not prejudicial to the products/materials.

STABILITY:

Accept responsibility for the stability and structural integrity of the works during the Contract, and support as necessary. Prevent overloading: details of design loads may be obtained from the Project Manager.

WI 235 CLEANLINESS OF ROADS

ROADS AND FOOTPATHS:

Duty: Maintain roads and footpaths within and adjacent to the site and keep clear of mud and debris.

WI 240 TRAFFIC/PEDESTRIAN MANAGEMENT

TRAFFIC/PEDESTRIAN MANAGEMENT:

Any activities that will restrict access to the existing site roads will be identified in advance to the Project Manager.

A suitable method of controlling vehicular and pedestrian access will be developed and approved by the Project Manager.

It is essential that all vehicular and pedestrian access ways are kept clear at all times, owing to the restricted nature of the access, especially for emergency service vehicles. Special care must be exercised when traffic enters and leaves the site.

WI 245 CONDITION SURVEY

CONDITION SURVEY:

The Contractor shall provide a condition survey of the existing buildings and internal areas and surrounding roads, footpaths, fences and external areas etc.

Such survey shall be conducted with the Clerk of Works and Project Manager prior to commencing work on site.

This should include all necessary photographs and video surveys as required, subject to express permission from the Project Manager and in accordance with WI 215.

The Contractor is to forward copies of the Condition Survey to the Project Manager.

The Contractor is responsible for making good any damage caused by him or his operatives.

WI 250 CONSIDERATION OF OTHERS

SURROUNDING LAND/BUILDING USES:

The adjacent areas are primarily used for research and storage purposes, with some used for administration functions, these will remain in constant use over the duration of the contract.

The contractor must ascertain for himself any information he may require to ensure the safety of all persons and the works.

Do not use the surrounding land or building(s) for any purpose other than carrying out the works.

The Contractor's operations must be confined to within the boundaries of the site.

The Contractor shall not obstruct adjacent roads with plant, materials or unattended vehicles.

Nor shall the Contractor disrupt activities in the other adjacent buildings, except with prior agreement with PHE/Project Manager.

The Contractor must ensure that the works are carried out in such a manner as to ensure, as far as possible, that adjacent buildings are not interfered with.

Where such interference is unavoidable, the Contractor must inform the Project Manager, before taking any action, and will comply with such instructions issued in regard thereto by the Project Manager.

Once the timing of the works and the limits of the area have been agreed and defined they must be strictly adhered to.

If, for any reason, such adherence should become impossible, the Project Manager must be kept fully informed and additional instructions obtained and complied with.

WI 255 INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Not Applicable

WI 260 CONTROL OF SITE PERSONNEL

PERMIT TO WORK:

A Permit to Work (PTW) system is in operation across the PHE site for the following activities:

- 'S1' Permit prior to any works in, or associated with the laboratories and plant rooms.
- Hot Trades e.g. welding etc.
- Work in confined spaces
- Working with pressurised systems
- Electrical works
- Excavations
- Working on roof spaces (at height)
- Working in plantrooms controlled by PHE's Site Services Group (Emcor). (S1 Permit)
- Isolation of services certification

The Contractor's PTW procedures shall be reviewed and approved by the Project Manager regarding the application of PHE's PTW requirements prior to works commencing.

The Contractor is reminded that failure to comply with these procedures may result in suspension of the works in that area.

All time and costs incurred as a result of the suspension will be the responsibility of the Contractor for non-compliance with the Permit to Work protocol.

SUPERVISION:

In addition to the constant management and supervision of the works provided by the Contractor's person in charge, all significant types of work must be under the close control of competent trade supervisors to ensure maintenance of satisfactory quality and progress.

The Contractor is responsible for co-ordination, supervision and administration to provide the works, including all subcontracts.

Arrange and monitor a programme with each subcontractor, supplier, local authority and statutory undertaker, and obtain and supply information as necessary for the co-ordination of the work.

WI 265 SITE CLEANLINESS

CONTRACTORS WORK AREA:

The Contractor shall remove rubbish and debris as it arises and immediately on substantially completing shall clean the works, including all surrounding areas, access ways and existing works affected by the alterations, internally and externally and leave for occupation to the satisfaction of the Project Manager

SURROUNDING AREAS:

The Contractor shall ensure that all surrounding areas are kept free from dirt and debris at all times.

WI 270 WASTE MATERIALS

WASTE:

The Contractor shall produce and issue to the Project Manager for approval a Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) prior to Construction Works commencing.

The Contractor shall be responsible for:

- obtaining relevant information from sub-contractors
- updating the SWMP at least every three months as the project progresses
- keeping all legal documentation for the movement, treatment and disposal of waste within the SWMP

- keeping the SWMP on site during the project
- ensuring that other contractors know where the SWMP is kept
- allowing other contractors and the client access to the SWMP during the project
- handing the completed SWMP back to the client at the end of the project
- keeping a copy of the SWMP in accordance with legislation.

The Contractor will be expected to apply the waste hierarchy and must ensure that all waste contractors used have the relevant licences, permits and/or exemptions to produce, carry, keep, treat or dispose of all waste produced as part of the project. Information on how the Contractor will achieve these requirements and all documentation associated with the movement of waste must be included within the SWMP.

Contractors have a duty to comply with all applicable waste legislation. Contractors working at PHE Porton must take the waste they generate off-site with them or arrange for their own waste facilities to be brought to site. The delivery of contractors facilities must be agreed in advance with the Project Manager and the position on site agreed.

All waste stored on site must be appropriately segregated and securely stored to prevent contamination and litter.

All rubbish, dirt and residues must be removed from voids and cavities in the construction before closing in.

WI 275 DELETERIOUS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

DELETERIOUS MATERIALS:

The Contractor shall not use or specify for use in the works any materials which contravene any British Standard Specification or Code of Practice or European Union Equivalent relevant at the date of specification or use which are generally known to be deleterious to health and safety and / or to the durability of the works.

STORAGE AND USE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the COSHH regulations.

All data sheets and the register of substances shall be issued to the Project Manager prior to substances delivered to site.

The Contractor shall provide Risk Assessments and Method Statements for all work involving hazardous materials and ensure their operatives are fully trained in their use.

POLLUTION:

Take all reasonable precautions to prevent pollution of the site, the works and the general environment including streams and waterways.

If pollution occurs, inform the appropriate Authorities and the Project Manager without delay and provide them with all relevant information.

USE OF PESTICIDES:

Use only where specified or approved by the Project Manager and then only suitable products as listed in the UK Pesticide Guide.

Where work is near water, drainage ditches or land drains, comply with the latest DEFRA 'Guidelines for the use of herbicides on weeds in or near water courses and lakes'

Observe all precautions recommended by the manufacturer and remove containers from site immediately they have been emptied or are no longer required.

Operatives must hold a BASIS Certificate of Competence, or work under the supervision of a Certificate holder.

WI 300 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN

DESIGN AND PRODUCTION INFORMATION

The Contractor will thoroughly check on the basis of the information available, that dimensions are correct, that account is taken of all related work and that construction is practicable.

CONTRACTORS DESIGN/PERFORMANCE SPECIFIED WORK:

The Contractor shall submit all information in accordance with the Works Information.

The Contractor is responsible for the final design and detailing of all works, which include the following:

- Enabling works, excavations, edging and edge stabilisation etc.
- Installation of the new Geosynthetic Gravel surface including all sub-structures for the car park and pathways.
- Marking of the parking bays, circulation, assess/egress etc.
- Electrical installation.
- Installation of car park and pathway lighting.
- · Installation of a pedestrian gate.

The contractor is required to provide the PM with detailed drawings for all of the above.

Such drawings shall be provided as paper and electronic copies

Where required complete the detailed design and the detailing of the work and provide complete production information (including, as appropriate, fabrication/installation drawings, design calculations, specifications, etc.) based on the drawings, specification and other Works Information provided liaising with the Project Manager and others as necessary to ensure coordination of the work with related building elements and services.

Request additional information as necessary from the Project Manager and provide information as necessary in time to meet the programme.

When preparing the programme make reasonable allowance for completing design/production information, inspection by the Supervisor, and any subsequent amendment(s), resubmission(s) and re-inspection(s).

Submit when required to the Project Manager the requested number of copies of design/production information.

Ensure that any necessary amendments are made without delay.

Unless and until the Project Manager confirms that resubmission is not required, submit copies of amended drawings etc. to Project Manager, and ensure incorporation of necessary amendments all as before.

If submitted design/production information differs from the contract documents, each such difference must be the subject of a request for substitution or change, supported by all relevant information.

Carefully check all manufacturers' drawings to ensure accuracy, completeness of the information and compliance with the Works Information.

Ensure that any amendments necessary to manufacturer's drawings are made prior to submission of the drawing for review by the Project Manager.

The Contractor will be responsible for the production of shop drawings/ workings/ fabrications for each element of work within the contract.

He will be responsible for the accuracy of these drawings and for the equipment shown thereon being suitable for the purpose for which it is intended and in accordance with the Works Information.

Production information must include:

- Builder's work information
- Installation drawings
- Shop drawings
- Equipment drawings
- As built drawings
- All other information listed in the specifications

Maintain on site, for regular inspection by the Project Manager and Supervisor, one set of drawings showing the progress of the work, with all modifications or revisions clearly indicated.

The drawn and other information must comply with standards agreed in advance with the Employer in respect of:

- Scales
- Notation
- Registration system

It is the Contractor's responsibility to confirm and amplify any information provided by the Employer.

CONTRACTOR'S CO-ORDINATION

The Contractor shall be responsible for detailed coordination of the works.

The Contractor will be responsible for establishing target dates for provision of construction information, samples, any necessary approvals and installation start dates, advising on timescales for production of maintenance information and manuals monitoring programmes, modifying and updating details to reflect commissioning results; assisting the Employer in developing an operating and maintenance strategy, making recommendations for commencing and executing maintenance during the defects correction period, providing as built drawings and information and ensuring such are updated to cover all alterations to the installations.

PRODUCT GUARANTEES:

The Contractor is to provide all product guarantees as applicable to the equipment and materials as installed as part of the project.

TECHNICAL LITERATURE:

The Contractor is to keep copies of the following on site, readily accessible for reference by all supervisory personnel:

- Manufacturers' current literature relating to all products to be used in the works.
- BSI Handbook No.3, with all current revision sheets included and superseded sheets removed.
- Relevant BS Codes of Practice.
- Those parts of BS.80000 'Workmanship on building sites' which are invoked in the specification.

MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS AND GUARANTEES:

Retain copies delivered with components and equipment (failing which, obtain), register with manufacturer as necessary and hand over to the Project Manager on or before the Completion Date.

Notify the Project Manager of telephone numbers for emergency services by Subcontractors after the completion date.

The Contractor will keep one complete set of the contract drawings, and one copy of the drawings referred to in the Contract, Contract Data, Works Information, Site Information, schedules, shop drawings or other like documents at the site in good order available to the Employer, Project Manager and the Supervisor.

Such documents will be kept up-to-date by replacing obsolete sheets with revised sheets as they are prepared.

WI 310 DESIGN SUBMISSION PROCEDURES

DRAWING/DOCUMENT ACCEPTANCE

Drawings/documents are to be submitted to the Project Manager for acceptance.

The Contractor is responsible for ensuring conformity with the scope and standards within the Works Information.

Acceptance will not be construed to mean that the Project Manager accepts the detailed design inherent in the drawings/documents, responsibility for which will remain with the Contractor.

The Contractor is responsible for any errors or omissions in the drawings/documents.

The Project Manager will confirm acceptance or otherwise of the drawings/documents within 10 working days of receipt.

Any comments must be incorporated and resubmitted within 5 working days of receipt, following which acceptance will be confirmed or otherwise within a further 5 working days.

The acceptance of design proposals will not relieve the Contractor of his responsibilities for design under the contract.

WI 320 EMPLOYER'S REQUIREMENTS

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DEFINITIONS:

The meaning of terms, derived terms and synonyms used in the preliminaries/general conditions and specification is as defined below or in the appropriate British Standard or British Standard glossary.

PM means the Project Manager.

IN WRITING: When required to advise, notify, inform, instruct, agree, confirm, obtain information, obtain approval or obtain instructions do so in writing.

APPROVAL (and words derived there from) means the approval in writing of the PM unless specified otherwise.

SUBMIT (and words derived there from) means to the PM unless otherwise instructed.

PRODUCTS means materials (including naturally occurring materials) and goods (including components, equipment and accessories) intended for permanent incorporation in the Works.

ALTERNATIVE MANUFACTURERS/SUPPLIERS of mechanical and electrical plant and materials: Where the specification permits selection of an alternative manufacturer/supplier for mechanical and electrical plant and materials, those highlighted in bold indicate the manufacturer/suppliers upon which the M&E design and specification has been based.

Where selection of one of the alternatives is desired, the Contractor shall satisfy themselves that the alternative product is fully equivalent in all respects including quality, operation, space requirements, safety, reliability, function, compatibility with adjacent construction, and, where relevant, appearance and shall make full allowance for any necessary modifications to the

design to accommodate the alternative product, including such modifications to the structure and fabric of the building.

CROSS-REFERENCES TO THE SPECIFICATION:

Where a numerical cross-reference to a specification section or clause is given on drawings or in any other document the Contractor must verify its accuracy by checking the remainder of the annotation or item description against the terminology used in the referred to section or clause.

Where a numerical cross-reference is not given the relevant section(s) and clause(s) of the specification will apply, cross-reference thereto being by means of related terminology.

Where a cross-reference for a particular type of work, feature, material or product is given, relevant clause(s) elsewhere in the referred to specification section dealing with general matters, ancillary products and workmanship also apply.

The Contractor must, before proceeding, obtain clarification or instructions in relation to any discrepancy or ambiguity which may be discovered.

REFERENCED DOCUMENTS:

Where and to the extent that this specification conflicts with referenced documents, this specification prevails.

EQUIVALENT PRODUCTS:

Where the specification permits substitution of a product of different manufacture to that specified and such substitution is desired, the Contractor will request the consent of the Project Manager for such substitution and before ordering the product notify the Project Manager and when requested submit documentary evidence that the alternative product is equivalent in all respects including materials safety, reliability, function, compatibility with adjacent construction, availability of compatible accessories and, where relevant, appearance. Submit certified English translations of any foreign language documents.

Any such request must be submitted sufficiently in advance (and in any event a minimum of 20 working days ahead) of the date for order required by the Contractor's programme so as to allow adequate time for the Project Manager to properly appraise the information submitted and make all checks and consultations as may be necessary prior to sanction of the substitution.

If the substitution is not deemed to be equivalent by the Project Manager following review of the information submitted it will not be sanctioned and the specified product will be used.

Any proposal for use of an alternative product must also include proposals for substitution of compatible accessory products and variation of details as necessary, with evidence of equivalent durability, function and appearance of the construction as a whole.

If such substitution is sanctioned and before ordering products provide revised drawings, specification and manufacturer's guarantees as required by the Project Manager.

SUBSTITUTION OF STANDARDS:

Where any product is specified to comply with a British Standard for which there is no equivalent European Standard it may be substituted by a product complying with a grade or category within a national standard of another Member State of the European Community or an international standard recognised in the UK specifying equivalent requirements and assurances in respect of material, safety, reliability, function, compatibility with adjacent construction, availability of compatible accessories and, where relevant, appearance. In advance of ordering submit notification of all such substitutions and, when requested, submit for verification documentary evidence confirming that the products comply with the specified requirements.

Any submitted foreign language documents must be accompanied by certified translations into English.

CURRENCY OF DOCUMENTS:

References to standards, type approval certificates, catalogues, codes of practice and the like are to the editions, revisions, versions and amendments current at the time of tender.

References to BSI documents are to the versions and amendments listed in the BSI Standards Catalogue, including updates, current at the time of tender.

MANUFACTURER AND REFERENCE:

Where used in this combination:

'Manufacturer' means:

The firm under whose name the particular product is marketed.

'Reference' means:

• The proprietary brand name and/or reference by which the particular product is identified.

SIZES:

Unless otherwise stated:

- Products are specified by their co-ordinating sizes.
- Cross section dimensions of timber shown on drawings are nominal sizes before any required planning.

PROVIDE means: providing, erecting, maintaining, adapting, clearing away and making good any disturbance or damage including damage to ground or structures to the entire satisfaction of the Project Manager.

FIX ONLY means all labours in unloading, handling, storing and fixing in position, including use of all plant.

SUPPLY AND FIX:

Unless stated otherwise all items given in the schedule of work and/or on the drawings are to be supplied and fixed complete.

TERMS USED IN REFURBISHMENT/ALTERATION

REMOVE means:

 Disconnect, dismantle as necessary and remove the stated element, work or component and all associated accessories, fastenings, supports, linings and bedding materials, and dispose of unwanted materials.

It does not include:

· Removing associated pipework, wiring, ducting or other services.

KEEP FOR REUSE means:

- During removal prevent damage to the stated components or materials, and clean off bedding and jointing materials.
- Stack neatly, adequately protect and store until required by the Employer or for use in the Works as instructed.

REPLACE means:

- Remove the stated existing components, features and finishes.
- Provide and fit in lieu new components, features or finished which, unless specified otherwise, must match those which have been removed.
- Make good as necessary.

REPAIR means:

- Carry out local remedial work to components, features and finishes as found in the existing building.
- Re-secure or re-fix as necessary and leave in sound and neat condition.

It does not include:

- Replacement of components or parts of components.
- Redecoration.

MAKE GOOD means carry out local remedial work to components, features and finishes which have been disturbed by other, previous work under this Contract and leave in a sound and neat condition.

It does not include:

- Replacement of components or parts of components.
- Redecoration.

The meaning of the term shall not be limited by this definition where used in connection with the defects liability provisions of the Contract.

EASE means make minor adjustments to moving parts of the stated component to achieve good fit in both open and closed positions and ensure free movement in relation to fixed surrounds. Make good as necessary.

TO MATCH EXISTING means use products, materials and methods to match closely all visual characteristics and features of the existing work, with joints between existing and new work as inconspicuous as possible, all to approval of appearance.

DOCUMENTS PROVIDED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER

OMISSIONS OR ERRORS in the Specification and/or Drawings shall not vitiate the Contract nor release the Contractor from any obligations or liabilities under the Contract.

ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THE DRAWINGS/ DOCUMENTS:

The Contractor is to allow for undertaking the copying of all drawings and specifications required.

THE SPECIFICATION/DRAWINGS:

The accuracy of dimensions scaled from the drawings is not guaranteed.

Obtain from the Employer any dimensions required but not given in figures on the drawings nor calculable from figures on the drawings.

All sections of the specification must be read in conjunction with the Contract Data, Works Information and Site Information.

WI 330 REQUIREMENTS OF OTHERS

Statutory authorities:

If necessary, the Contractor is responsible for compliance with the planning conditions and for taking any measures necessary to obtain their full discharge by the planning authority. The Employer is responsible for the payment of the planning fees.

If necessary, the Contractor must ascertain from all relevant Statutory Authorities what requirements or restrictions, if any, shall apply to the works. The restrictions may relate to the type of plant to be used, the methods of working to be adopted, the hours of working permissible and may in addition impose a maximum noise level limit at the site boundary.

WI 335 COPYRIGHT/LICENCE

COPYRIGHT/Licence:

The Contractor grants to the Employer, with immediate effect, an irrevocable, non-exclusive, non-terminable, royalty-free licence to copy and make full use of any design material prepared by, or on behalf of, the Contractor for any purpose relating to the Works

This licence allows the Beneficiary to use the design material in connection with any extension of the works, but not to reproduce the designs contained in the material in any such extension.

This licence carries the right to grant sub-licences and is transferable to third parties without the consent of the Contractor.

The Contractor shall not be liable for use of the design material for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared and/or provided.

The Employer may request a copy (or copies) of some or all of the design material from the Contractor.

On the Employers payment of the Contractor's reasonable charges for providing the copy (or copies), the Contractor shall provide the copy (or copies) to the Employer.

DEFINITION:

Design Material:

All designs, drawings, models, plans, specifications, design details, photographs, brochures, reports, notes of meetings, CAD materials, calculations, schedules, programmes, bills of quantities, budgets and any other materials provided in connection with the Works and all updates, amendments, additions and revisions to them and any works, designs, or inventions incorporated or referred to in them for any purpose relating to the works.

Permitted Uses:

The design, construction, completion, reconstruction, modification, refurbishment, development, maintenance, funding, disposal, letting, fitting-out, advertisement, demolition, reinstatement, [extension] and repair of the property and the works.

WI 340 ACCESS TO INFORMATION FOLLOWING COMPLETION

The Contractor retains all documents relating to the design of the works and services for a period of no less than 12 years after Completion and upon written request from the Employer shall provide the Employer copies of such documents provided that if this request is made after the issue of the defects certificate, the Employer pays the Contractor a defined cost and fee for providing such documents.

WI 400 COMPLETION

WI 405 COMPLETION DEFINITION

COMPLETION:

Upon completion, allow to professionally clean all surfaces (including access routes) affected by the works on completion using suitable cleaning products, all to the satisfaction of the PM.

At the end of the works the Contractor must make adequate allowance within the programme for the completion of all snagging works. These elements of work must be clearly shown on the Contractors programme.

Where the demise is considered unworthy of Practical Completion at that time, the contractor will be charged for the Project Manager's/ Employer's additional time for each subsequent site inspection at £500 per visit including administration over and above any claim for liquidated damages which may arise under the contract.

Completion shall be certified by the Project Manager only when the Contractor has provided all the works as stated in the Works Information including all equipment Site Acceptance Tests as applicable and undertaken all Validation activities as specified to the satisfaction of the Project Manager.

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS:

As a condition precedent to certification of overall Completion, supply the Project Manager with the completed O&M manuals in the format as described within the Works Information

WI 410 SECTIONAL COMPLETION DEFINITION

No sectional completion is envisaged

WI 415 TRAINING

TRAINING OF EMPLOYER'S STAFF:

No training is envisaged

WI 420 FINAL CLEAN

On completion of the works and prior to hand over the Contractor shall thoroughly clean all areas after removal of all equipment, tools, temporary works, materials, protective coverings leaving the works in a condition acceptable to the Project Manager.

Cleaning materials and methods to be as recommended by manufacturers of products being cleaned and to be such that there is no damage or disfigurement to other materials or construction.

Obtain COSHH dated data sheets for all materials used for cleaning and ensure they are used only as recommended by their manufacturers.

WI 425 SECURITY

SECURITY AT COMPLETION:

Leave the Works secure with all accesses locked. Account for and adequately label all keys and hand over to Project Manager with itemised schedule, retaining duplicate schedule signed by Project Manager as a receipt.

WI 430 CORRECTING DEFECTS

MAKING GOOD DEFECTS:

Make arrangements with the Project Manager and give reasonable notice of the precise dates for access to the various parts of the works for purposes of making good defects. Inform the Project Manager when remedial works to the various parts of the works are completed.

WI 435 PRE-COMPLETION ARRANGEMENTS

WORK AT OR AFTER COMPLETION

GENERALLY:

Make good all damage consequent upon the work.

Touch up minor faults in newly painted/repainted work, carefully matching colour, and brushing out edges.

Repaint badly marked areas back to suitable breaks or junctions

EMERGENCY CONTACT NUMBERS:

Notify Project Manager of telephone numbers for emergency services by Sub-contractors after the Completion Date.

WI 440 HEALTH AND SAFETY FILE

See Pre-Construction Information for the requirements of the Health And Safety File

THE BUILDING MANUAL:

The Building Manual (incorporating the Health and Safety File and subtitled accordingly) is to be a comprehensive information source and guide for the Employer and end users providing a complete understanding of the building and its systems and enabling it to be operated and maintained efficiently and safely. The Contractor is required to obtain or prepare all the information to be included in the manual, produce the required number of copies of the manual and submit them to the Review Panel

The Building Manual incorporates the documents listed below and any reference to 'The Building Manual' shall mean the whole document.

- Master Control Manual
- Health & Safety File,
- Operation & Maintenance Manuals

BUILDING LOG-BOOK:

A Building Log-Book is already in place for the building

PRESENTATION OF BUILDING MANUAL:

Format: A4 size, plastics covered, loose leaf, four-ring binders with hard covers, each indexed, divided and appropriately cover titled.

The Employer also requires an electronic version of all Building Manual documents including all drawings etc., note, original copies of test and commissioning certificates are required in the paper version.

Selected drawings needed to illustrate or locate items mentioned in the Manual: Where larger than A4, to be folded and accommodated in the binders so that they may be unfolded without being detached from the rings.

As-built drawings: The main sets may form annexes to the Manual.

WI 500 PROGRAMME

WI 505 PROGRAMME REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor shall familiarise himself with the contents of the URS, Scope of Work and Works Information and allow for any float time, time risk allowances as appropriate in accordance with the Contract.

The Contractor shall identify the following additional specific information on each issue of the programme:

- Design delivery dates
- Sectional works completion dates
- Employer approval periods in accordance with the timescales of the Contract
- Date for submission of the draft Health & Safety File
- Date for submission of the final Health & Safety File

The Critical path activities shall be clearly marked.

WI 510 PROGRAMME ARRANGEMENT

Submit two paper copies and one electronic copy (MS Project 2013 format and PDF in format, showing all required information in accordance with the Contract) to the Project Manager.

WI 515 METHODOLOGY STATEMENT

The contractor's attention is drawn to the following programme constraints.

- No weekend working except by arrangement only
- No Bank Holiday working except by arrangement only.

The Contractor is to programme/cost for any noisy works that would affect the usual occupation of the other users, which must be undertaken outside of normal working hours. Noise levels must be in accordance with Local Authority regulations. The Project Manager must be made aware of any noisy works in advance.

The Contractor is to appoint a fully qualified and competent site manager who shall be responsible for all works under the contract and will liaise with the Project Manager on all matters arising out of the works. The Contractor must provide proof of their competence, experience and training prior to commencement. The Site Manager is to be identified within the submitted tender package. The Contractor is to ensure that the site manager is in attendance at all times. No trades or works are to be undertaken without the Site Manager being in attendance. The manager shall be available to attend periodic inspections and valuations by the PM, and shall not be a working foreman.

Allow to submit a progress report to the PM on a bi-weekly basis to update on progress, programme and issues on site. The format is to be submitted by the contractor for approval.

The contractor shall allow for providing all necessary plant and equipment to carry out the works to the satisfaction of the PM. This is to involve all necessary internal and external temporary lighting in order for the works to be safely undertaken, Health and Safety signage, PPE and the like.

Hours of working permitted under this contract are set out below:

Monday - Friday: 07.30am to 17.30pm

Saturday - Sunday and Bank Holidays: By arrangement only

Normal working hours can only be extended by prior agreement with PM and site security. Sufficient advance request of out of hours works must be provided and approved before commencement.

The contractor is to ensure that the site is left in a safe, clear, clean and tidy condition at the end of each working day, suitable for occupation by the employer's staff. The contractor is to provide a method statement as to how this is to be achieved with their tender submission.

The contractor shall erect, maintain and subsequently strike all necessary access platforms, ladders etc. as necessary to enable the proper and safe execution of the works.

WI 520 WORK OF THE EMPLOYER AND OTHERS

There are no works carried out by others envisaged for the project

WI 525 INFORMATION REQUIRED

The Contractor shall produce a separate schedule detailing the information to be provided / required by to complete the works. The document shall state who it shall be provided by and to whom as well as the anticipated dates and durations for review in order to maintain the critical path of the works.

WI 530 REVISED PROGRAMME

RECORD PROGRESS:

Record progress on a copy of the programme kept on site. If any circumstances arise which may affect the progress of the works, put forward proposals or take other action as appropriate to minimise any delay and to recover any lost time.

All revised programmes issued for acceptance must be accompanied by a narrative identifying the Critical Path operations and schedule the changes since the last programme.

Any programme issued to the Project Manager shall be rescheduled to indicate any revised completion date and include any Compensation Events implications.

WI 600 QUALITY ASSURANCE

WI 605 SAMPLES

SAMPLES/APPROVALS

SAMPLES:

Where samples of finished work are specified, or required to obtain statutory consent, obtain approval of stated characteristic(s) before proceeding with the works.

Retain approved samples in good, clean condition on site for comparison with the works.

Remove samples which are not part of the finished works when no longer required.

The Contractor is required to provide the samples identified within the Works Information.

APPROVAL OF PRODUCTS:

Where approval of a product is specified the requirement for approval relates to a sample of the product and not to the product as used in the Works.

Submit a sample or other evidence of suitability.

Do not confirm orders or use the product until approval of the sample has been obtained.

Retain approved sample in good, clean condition on site.

Ensure that the product used in the works matches the approved sample.

Remove when no longer required.

SAMPLES OF FINISHED WORK:

Where a sample of finished work is specified for approval, the requirement for approval relates to the sample itself (if approval of the finished work as a whole is required this is specified separately).

Obtain approval of the stated characteristic(s) of the sample before proceeding with the Works.

Retain approved samples in good, clean condition on site.

Ensure that the relevant characteristic(s) of the works match the approved characteristic(s) of the sample.

Remove samples which are not part of the finished works when no longer required.

The Contractor is required to provide the samples identified within the Specifications and as required to discharge the planning conditions.

APPROVALS:

Where and to the extent that products or work are specified to be approved or the Project Manager instructs or requires that they are to be approved, the same must be supplied and executed to comply with all other requirements and in respect of the stated or implied characteristics either:

- To the express approval of the Project Manager or
- To match a sample expressly approved by the Project Manager as a standard for the purpose.

The Supervisor will confirm acceptance or otherwise of the samples within 10 working days of receipt.

Any comments must be incorporated and resubmitted within 5 working days of receipt, following which acceptance will be confirmed or otherwise within a further 5 working days.

APPROVALS:

Inspection or any other action by the Project Manager must not be taken as approval of products or work unless the Project Manager so confirms in writing in express terms referring to:

- Date of inspection
- · Part of the work inspected
- · Respects or characteristics which are approved

- Extent and purpose of the approval
- Any associated conditions.

WI 610 QUALITY STATEMENT

The Contractor shall provide a quality statement setting out their proposals for covering the following aspects:

- Management and resources proposed to ensure compliance with the Works Information.
- · Samples of plant materials and workmanship
- Acceptance of Goods
- Compliance with recognised good practice applicable to the scope of works identified within the Works Information
- Ordering and supply of Goods
- Handling / Storage
- Management of Sub Contractors and Suppliers

WI 615 QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Contractor shall operate a quality management system which complies with the relevant parts of BS EN ISO 9001 and 9002 and has a third party certification from an approved accreditation body. Prior to the Starting date the Contractor prepares a quality plan and submits it to the Project Manager for acceptance. The quality plan incorporates:

- The Quality Statement
- Details of the Contractors Quality Management Systems
- Quality requirements stated in the Works Information

Any Sub Contractor / Supplier appointed by the Contractor will operate a quality system enabling them to comply with the Contractors quality management system.

WI 620 QUALITY AUDITS

The Contractor and subcontractors may be subject to Audits carried out by the Employer.

The Contract will be placed subject to the successful completion of these audits.

WI 625 MATERIALS AND WORK GENERALLY

GOOD PRACTICE:

Where and to the extent that equipment, plant, materials, products and workmanship are not fully detailed or specified they are to be:

- Of a standard appropriate to the Works and suitable for the functions stated in or reasonably to be inferred from the project documents, and
- In accordance with relevant good building practice.

GENERAL QUALITY OF PRODUCTS:

Products to be new unless otherwise specified.

For products specified to a British or European Standard obtain certificates of compliance from manufacturers when requested by the Project Manager.

Where a choice of manufacturer or source of supply is allowed for any particular product, the whole quantity required to complete the work must be of the same type, manufacture and/or source unless otherwise approved.

Produce written evidence of sources of supply when requested by the Project Manager.

Ensure that the whole quantity of each product required to complete the work is of consistent kind, size, quality and overall appearance.

Where consistency of appearance is desirable ensure consistency of supply from the same source.

Unless otherwise approved do not use different colour batches where they can be seen together.

If products are prone to deterioration or have a limited shelf life, order in suitable quantities to a programme and use in appropriate sequence. Do not use if there are any signs of deterioration, setting or other unsatisfactory condition.

PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS:

Handle, store, prepare and use or fix each product in accordance with its manufacturer's current printed or written recommendations/instructions. Inform the Project Manager if these conflict with any other specified requirement. Submit copies to the Project Manager when requested.

Ancillary products and accessories to be of a type recommended by the main product manufacturer, unless otherwise specified.

The contract will be deemed to be based on the products specified and recommendations on their use as described in the manufacturer's literature current the time of tender.

Obtain confirmation from manufacturers that the products specified and recommendations on their use have not been changed since that time. Where such change has occurred, inform the Project Manager and do not place orders for or use the affected products without further instructions.

Where British Board of Agrément certified products are used, comply with the limitations, recommendations and requirements of the relevant valid certificates.

CHECKING COMPLIANCE OF PRODUCTS/MATERIALS:

Check all delivery tickets, labels, identification marks and, where appropriate, the products themselves to ensure that all products comply with the project documents. Where different types of any product are specified, check to ensure that the correct type is being used in each location. In particular, check that:

- The sources, types, qualities, finishes and colours are correct, and match any approved samples.
- All accessories and fixings which should be supplied with the goods have been supplied.
- Sizes and dimensions are correct. Where tolerances of components are critical, measure a sufficient quantity to ensure compliance.
- The delivered quantities are correct, to ensure that shortages do not cause delays in the work.
- The products are clean, undamaged and otherwise in good condition.
- Any products which have a limited shelf life are not out of date.

SUITABILITY OF RELATED WORK AND CONDITIONS:

Ensure that all trades are provided with necessary details of related types of work. Before starting each new type or section of work, ensure that:

- Previous, related work is appropriately complete, in accordance with the project documents, to a suitable standard and in a suitable condition to receive the new work.
- All necessary preparatory work has been carried out, including provision for services, openings, supports, fixings, damp proofing, priming and sealing.
- The environmental conditions are suitable, particularly that the building is suitably weather tight when internal components, services and finishes are installed.

Protection measures to sensitive and specialist equipment are to be agreed with the Project Manager,

GENERAL QUALITY OF WORKMANSHIP:

Operatives must be appropriately skilled and experienced for the type and quality of work.

Take all necessary precautions to prevent damage to the work from frost, rain and other hazards.

Inspect components and products carefully before fixing or using and reject any which are defective.

Fix or lay securely, accurately and in alignment.

Where not specified otherwise, select fixing and jointing methods and types, sizes and spacings of fastenings in compliance with section Z20. Fastenings to comply with relevant British Standards.

Provide suitable, tight packings at screwed and bolted fixing points to take up tolerances and prevent distortion.

Do not over tighten fixings.

Adjust location and fixing of components and products so that joints which are to be finished with mortar or sealant or otherwise left open to view are even and regular.

Ensure that all moving parts operate properly and freely.

Do not cut, grind or plane prefinished components and products to remedy binding or poor fit without approval.

ACCURACY/SETTING OUT GENERALLY

ACCURACY OF INSTRUMENTS:

Use instruments and methods described in BS 5606 to give accuracy in measurement.

SETTING OUT

Submit details of methods and equipment to be used in setting out the works.

SETTING OUT:

Check the levels and dimensions of the site against those shown on the drawings, and record the results on a copy of the drawings.

Notify Project Manager in writing of any discrepancies and obtain instructions before proceeding.

SETTING OUT:

Inform Project Manager when overall setting out is complete and before commencing construction.

APPEARANCE AND FIT:

Arrange the setting out, erection, juxtaposition of components and application of finishes (working within the practical limits of the design and the specification) to ensure that there is satisfactory fit at junctions, that there are no practically or visually unacceptable changes in plane, line or level and that the finished work has a true and regular appearance.

Wherever satisfactory accuracy, fit and/or appearance of the work are likely to be critical or difficult to achieve, obtain approval of proposals or of the appearance of the relevant aspects of the partially finished work as early as possible.

Without prejudice to the above and unless specified otherwise, tolerances will (where applicable) be not greater than those given in BS 5606, Tables 1 and 2.

CRITICAL DIMENSIONS:

Certain dimensions on the following drawings are noted as 'critical'; set out and construct the works to ensure compliance with the tolerances stated on the drawings.

DIMENSIONING:

The Contractor shall be responsible for the co-ordination and precise location of terminals, outlets, drainage points and fittings where not dimensioned on the drawings and schedules and shall mark them out for approval by the Project Manager prior to chasing/installation.

LEVELS OF STRUCTURAL FLOORS:

Maximum tolerances will be as stated in the appropriate specifications or maximum tolerances for designed levels.

SERVICES GENERALLY

SERVICE RUNS:

Make adequate provision for services, including unobstructed routes and fixings. Wherever possible ducts, chases and holes are to be formed during construction rather than cut.

WATER FOR THE WORKS:

Clean and uncontaminated. If other than mains supply is proposed provide evidence of suitability. Test to BS 3148 if instructed.

WI 700 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

WI 705 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

TESTING:

Test and inspection requirements are defined within the Scope of Works

ACCESS FOR INSPECTION:

Give the Supervisor not less than 5 working days' notice before removing scaffolding or other facilities for access.

PROPOSALS FOR RECTIFICATION OF DEFECTIVE WORK/PRODUCTS:

Defects in construction are to be reported to the Supervisor without delay.

Obtain instructions before proceeding with work which may:

- Cover up or otherwise hinder access to the defective construction, or
- Be rendered abortive by the carrying out of remedial work.

As soon as possible after any part(s) of the work or any products are known to be not in accordance with the Contract or appear that they may not be in accordance, then the Contractor or Supervisor may submit proposals to the other for opening up, inspection, testing, making good, or removal and re-execution.

Such proposals may be unacceptable to the Supervisor and he may issue other instructions.

MEASURES TO ESTABLISH ACCEPTABILITY:

Wherever inspection or testing shows that the work, materials or goods are not in accordance with the Contract and measures (e.g. testing, opening up, experimental making good) are taken to help in establishing whether or not the work is acceptable, such measures:

- will be at the expense of the Contractor
- will not be considered as grounds for extension of time.

QUALITY CONTROL:

Establish and maintain procedures to ensure that the Works, including the work of all subcontractors, comply with specified requirements.

Maintain full records, keep copies on site for inspection by the Project Manager, and submit copies of particular parts of the records on request. The records must include:

Identification of the element, item, batch or lot including location in the Works.

- The nature and dates of inspections by the Contractor or the Project Manager, tests and approvals.
- The nature and extent of any nonconforming work found.
- Details of any corrective action.

WI 707 VALIDATION (NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS TENDER)

No Validation of any of the equipment / installation is required

WI 710 MANAGEMENT OF TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

The Contractor shall provide a test and inspection plan as part of their quality management system, detailing how the Contractor will control the Works and Equipment in line with any test and inspection schedule. This plan must be approved by the Project Manager.

The Test and Inspection Plan must include:

- Procedures and method statements etc. needed to carry out the work
- Acceptance standards such as specifications, national standards and legislation
- Requirements for samples, benchmarks, trials and prototypes.
- Records and other deliverables generated as part of any test process.
- Who is responsible for the implementing the planned arrangements
- Who is responsible for certifying that compliance with the requirements has been achieved

WI 720 SUPERVISOR'S PROCEDURES FOR INSPECTIONS AND WATCHING TESTS

TIMING OF TESTS AND INSPECTIONS:

The Contractor will ensure that tests and inspections are carried out before doing any work which would obstruct the test or inspection and in any event the Contractor will give the Supervisor 14 day's prior notice to allow the Supervisor to be present. On the day before the test or inspection is due to be carried out the Contractor will advise the Supervisor whether or not the work or samples will be ready.

If the work or samples will not be ready the Contractor will arrange a new time and date for the testing or inspection to be carried out. The Contractor will notify the Supervisor of the results of all tests and inspections.

TEST CERTIFICATES:

Submit a copy of each certificate to Supervisor as soon as practicable and keep copies of all certificates on site.

WI 800 MANAGEMENT OF THE WORKS

DOCUMENTS:

The Contractor is required to keep copies of the following on the site, readily accessible for reference by the Project Manager and Supervisor:

- Manufacturers' current literature relating to all products to be used in the works.
- Relevant BS Codes of Practice.
- Those parts of BS.8000 'Workmanship on building sites' which are invoked in the specification.
- Completed Site Waste Management Plan.

Retain copies of maintenance instructions and guarantees delivered with components and equipment (failing which, obtain), register with manufacturer as necessary and hand over to the CDM Coordinator on or before the Completion Date.

SUPERVISOR (CONSTRUCTION MANAGER):

The Employer will appoint a general Supervisor (Clerk of Works) to monitor the Contractors activities on site and adherence to design drawings and specifications. This general role may be supported where required by discipline specific supervisors employed by PHE.

WI 805 PROJECT TEAM - OTHERS

DESIGNERS: Contractor design

PRINCIPAL DESIGNER FOR CDM:

Contractor

QUANTITY SURVEYOR:

PHE

WI 810 COMMUNICATIONS

CONTRACTOR'S SITE MEETINGS:

The Contractor must hold such regular site meetings as are necessary for the proper management and co-ordination of the contract. The Contractor must arrange for representatives of sub-contractors to attend when necessary and allow for all expenses of his own attendance and provision of suitable accommodation. The Contractor will be responsible for the production and circulation of agendas, minutes of meetings. Minutes to be circulated within 48hrs of meeting.

PM'S EARLY WARNING MEETINGS:

The Project Manager will hold Early Warning meetings to review progress and other matters. Meetings will normally be held every two weeks.

Ensure the availability of accommodation and attend all such meetings. The Contractor's senior representatives shall attend all meetings to report on progress, contract and all other matters.

The Project Manager will chair the meetings and take and distribute minutes.

CONTRACTOR'S PROGRESS REPORT:

The Contractor shall submit a progress report to the Project Manager two days prior to each site meeting. Notwithstanding the Contractor's obligations under the contract the report must include:

- A progress statement by reference to the master programme for the works
- Details of any matters materially affecting the regular progress of the Works
- Any requirements for further drawings or details or instructions to enable the Project Manager to fulfil his obligations under the Conditions of Contract.
- Health and Safety Issues.

WI 900 WORKING WITH THE EMPLOYER AND OTHERS

WI 905 SHARING THE WORKING AREAS WITH THE EMPLOYER AND OTHERS

WORKS BY OTHERS:

The Contractor must liaise with Emcor Facilities Services for the following services currently maintained by them:

Access Control Fire Alarm Security Utilities

GENERALLY:

The Contractor will co-ordinate the works to incorporate the above direct contractor's works and the Contractor will include for the following co-ordination and attendance items:

- (i) Arrange and co-ordinate programme dates with the Project Manager.
- (ii) Meet with the Project Manager to agree detail of working practices while both parties are on site.
- (iii) Whilst each direct contractor is on site the following factors will need to be allowed for:
 - Ready access will be required to the direct contractor's defined working areas
 - Deliverance of materials to the working areas will need to be co-ordinated
 - Temporary electrical power will be required
 - Permanent services will be provided to allow for commissioning
 - Secure weatherproof site storage
 - Access to welfare facilities
 - Use of Contractor's access scaffolding if available.

WI 920 AUTHORITIES AND UTILITIES PROVIDERS

SERVICES REGULATIONS:

Any work carried out to or which affects new or existing services must be in accordance with the Bye Laws or Regulations of the relevant Statutory Authority.

WATER REGULATIONS/BYELAWS NOTIFICATION:

Notify Water Undertaker or any work carried out to or which affects new or existing services and submit any required plans, diagrams and details.

Allow adequate time to receive Undertaker's consent before starting work. Inform immediately if consent is withheld or is granted subject to significant conditions.

WATER REGULATIONS/BYELAWS CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATE:

On completion of the work, submit to the Project Manager (and where required also to the Water Undertaker) a certificate including:

- The address of the premises.
- A brief description of the new installation and/or work carried out to an existing installation.
- The Contractor's name and address.
- A statement that the installation complies with the relevant Water Regulations or Byelaws.
- The name and signature of the individual responsible for checking compliance.
- The date on which the installation was checked.

WI 1000 SERVICES AND OTHER THINGS TO BE PROVIDED

WI 1005 SERVICES AND OTHER THINGS FOR THE USE OF THE EMPLOYER, PROJECT MANAGER OR OTHERS TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR

GENERALLY

LOCATIONS:

Inform the Project Manager of the intended siting of all spoil heaps, temporary works and services

Maintain, alter, adapt and move temporary works and services as necessary. Remove when no longer required and make good.

ACCOMMODATION

SITE OFFICES:

The Contractor's and his Sub-contractor's temporary buildings, mess room, equipment, working materials and building operations will be confined to the Site and Working Areas. The Contractor's staff will not be permitted beyond the boundary of these areas.

ROOM FOR MEETINGS:

Meetings will be held in the main Employer's complex. The Contractor shall liaise with the Project Manager for booking meeting rooms.

SANITARY ACCOMMODATION:

Provide and maintain in a clean condition sanitary accommodation and drying room.

The accommodation must include an adequate number of appliances, wash hand basin(s) with hot and cold supply, with adequate heating, lighting and ventilation, to comply with the construction Health and Safety and Welfare Regulations.

Under no circumstances will the Contractor be allowed to use welfare facilities within the adjacent buildings.

CANTEEN/MESS FACILITIES:

The Contractor may use the main PHE canteen as long as overalls, dirty clothing or boots are not worn in the canteen. The Contractor should note no contractors shall be permitted to use the canteen facilities between 12.30pm and 13.30pm.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to use other welfare facilities within the building.

EQUIPMENT, SMALL TOOLS AND OTHER TEMPORARY WORK

EQUIPMENT:

The Contractor will provide and maintain all necessary equipment such as temporary fencing, hoardings, planked footways, guard rails, gantries, warning signs and the like for the proper execution of the works, for the protection of the Employer's staff, and other authorised personnel and for meeting the requirements of any Local or other Authority and alter, adapt and shift from time to time as necessary.

SMALL PLANT AND TOOLS:

The Contractor shall provide and maintain all necessary small tools for the proper execution of the works.

EQUIPMENT:

Provide all Equipment such as scaffolding, craneage, plant, tools, vehicles, implements and machinery necessary to Provide the Works.

TEMPORARY WORK

TEMPORARY FENCING, HOARDINGS ETC:

The Contractor shall provide, adapt and maintain as required by the work temporary screens to ensure that noise, dust and access from/to the contractors working areas are restricted.

Should the screen be located across a designated fire escape route then access will have to be maintained by the Contractor. All other necessary equipment such as temporary fencing, hoardings, screens, roofs, fans, planked footways, guardrails, gantries warning signs and similar items as may be necessary for protecting the public and others from the execution of the Works and for meeting the requirements of any Local Authority or other Statutory body and other, adapt and shift from time to time as necessary.

The Contractor must provide all necessary lighting (see also clause Lighting and Power for the Works).

WI 1010 SERVICES AND OTHER THINGS TO BE PROVIDED BY THE EMPLOYER

LIGHTING AND POWER:

The Employer's power supplies may be used by the Contractor to carry out the Works. The location of the supply connection is to be confirmed by the Project Manager. The Contractor shall allow for all alterations, adaptions and maintain as necessary, remove and make good on completion.

WATER:

The Employer's water supplies may be used by the Contractor to carry out the Works. The location of the supply connection is to be confirmed by the Project Manager. The Contractor shall allow for all alterations, adaptions and maintain as necessary, remove and make good on completion.

TELEPHONE LINE

A permanent land line installation will only be considered for projects lasting over 1 year

WI 1100 HEALTH AND SAFETY

WI 1105 HEALTH AND SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

RISKS TO HEALTH AND SAFETY:

See Pre-Construction Information

The nature and condition of the site cannot be fully and certainly ascertained before it is opened up.

Risks have been identified within the Pre-Construction Information.

The accuracy and sufficiency of this information is not guaranteed by the Employer or the Project Manager and the Contractor must ascertain for himself any information he may require to ensure the safety of all persons and the works.

The CONSTRUCTION PHASE HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN developed from the Outline Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan must be submitted to the CDM Coordinator not less than 15 days before the proposed date for start of construction work. Do not start construction work until the CDM Coordinator/Project Manager has confirmed in writing that the Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan includes the procedures and arrangements required by CDM Regulation 15(4).

EMPLOYER'S REPRESENTATIVE SITE VISITS:

Submit details in advance, of safety provisions and procedures (including those relating to materials, which may be deleterious), which will require their compliance when visiting the site.

Provide protective clothing and/ or equipment on site for the Employer, the Employer's representatives and other visitors to the site.

WI 1200 SUBCONTRACTING

WI 1205 RESTRICTIONS OR REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBCONTRACTING

For reasons that are confidential to the Employer, certain contractors are not permitted to work on site at the PHE Site Porton Down.

During the Tender process the Contractor was requested to advise the sub-contractors that he intends to use for this project. Any prohibited Sub Contractors will have been advised by the Project Manager and a request made to select an alternative Sub Contractor.

Should a prohibited contractor be brought on site by the successful Tenderer that had not been advised at the pre-contract award meeting, the Employer will not be liable for any cost whatsoever incurred by the Contractor in replacing the prohibited contractor.

WI 1300 TITLE

WI 1310 MARKING

Subject to the agreement of the Project Manager and identified on the approved Activity Schedule the payment for any material or equipment stored away from the Employers site shall only be made subject to completion of a "Vesting Certificate".

Materials or equipment shall be:

In accordance with the Contract

- Insured
- Set apart and marked to identify they are the property of PHE, with the Job name and number.
- Stored as to prevent damage / degradation
- Available for inspection

WI 1320 MATERIALS FROM EXCAVATION AND DEMOLITION

MATERIALS FOUND:

Any materials or objects of value found on the site will remain the property of the Employer and will only be sold or removed as the Project Manager will direct; access will be allowed to any authorised person instructed to remove same.

OWNERSHIP:

Materials arising from the alteration work are to become the property of the Contractor except where otherwise stated. Remove from site as work proceeds.

DISPOSAL

All copies of waste disposal certificates will be issued to PHE to confirm that all materials have been disposed of in accordance with the PHE's waste management policy.

WI 1400 ADDITIONAL RECORDS

CONTROL OF COST

CASH FLOW FORECAST:

As soon as possible and before starting work on site submit to the Project Manager a forecast showing the Price for Work Done to Date at each assessment date throughout the contract period and based upon the programme for the works and the accepted Activity Schedules.

This will be required to be updated as work progresses to reflect the revised program and the impact of any Compensation Events.

MEASUREMENTS:

Give reasonable notice to the Project Manager before covering up work which the Project Manager requires to be measured.

LABOUR AND PLANT RETURNS:

At the beginning of each week provide for verification by the Project Manager records showing, for each day of the previous week:

- The number and description of craftsmen, labourers and other persons employed on or in connection with the Works, including those employed by subcontractors.
- The number, type and capacity of all mechanical and power-operated plant employed on the Works.

WI 1500 EMPLOYER'S WORK SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS

The Contractor is to develop the design in accordance with WI300, its sub-clauses, the URS and Scope of Work